
BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 

SUMMONS TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
TO:    THE LORD MAYOR AND THE COUNCILLORS OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

 

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of the Council will be held in the 

Council Chamber, City Hall and via Microsoft Teams on Monday, 5th June, 2023 at 6.00 

p.m., for the transaction of the following business: 

 
 
1. Summons   
 
2. Apologies   
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 
4. Minutes of Council Meetings (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
5. Official Announcements   
 
6. Appointment of Positions of Responsibility for 2023 - 2027   
 
 (Report to be tabled) 

 
7. Installation of Lord Mayor   
 
8. Installation of Deputy Lord Mayor   
 
9. Appointment of Members to Standing Committees for 2023/24   
 
 (Report to be tabled) 

 
10. Appointment of Aldermen (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
 To consider appointing up to a maximum of fifteen Members to serve as Aldermen 

for the duration of the Council term (copy of legislation attached) 
 

 
 
                   The Members of Belfast City Council are hereby summoned to attend. 

 
 

John Walsh 
 
 

Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

A1049 
 
 

Council 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 

Held in the Council Chamber, City Hall and remotely, via Microsoft Teams, 
on Tuesday, 2nd May, 2023 at 6.00 p.m., pursuant to notice. 

 
 Members present:   The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor (Councillor Black) 
  (Chairperson); 
  The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor M. Kelly); 
  The High Sheriff (Councillor Kyle); 

Aldermen Copeland, Dorrian, Haire, Sandford and Rodgers;  
and Councillors Beattie, Bradley, Bunting, Canavan, 
Carson, Matt Collins, Michael Collins , de Faoite, 
M. Donnelly, R. M. Donnelly, Doran, Douglas, Duffy, Flynn, 
Garrett, Gormley, Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, 
Hussey, T. Kelly, Long, Lyons, Magee, Maskey, McAteer, 
McCabe, McCann, McCullough, McCusker, McDonough-
Brown, McKeown, McLaughlin, McMullan, Murphy, Murray, 
Newton, O’Hara, Smyth, Spratt, Thompson, Walsh and 
Whyte. 

 
 

Apologies 
 
 Apologies for inability to attend were reported for Alderman McCoubrey and 
Councillors Bower, Cobain, Ferguson, Hutchinson, Maghie, Nelson and Verner.  
 

Freedom of the City - Dáithí Mac Gabhann. 
 

 Moved by Councillor Micheal Donnelly, 
 Seconded by Alderman Dorrian and 
 

 Resolved – “Belfast City Council is no stranger to Dáithí Mac Gabhann 
and his family. 
 
Dáithí was the official face of Belfast City Council’s Christmas card in 2018 
and Belfast City Council was also the first council here to support the calls 
for the introduction of soft opt out organ donation back in 2019 and, most 
recently, this council wrote to Chris Heaton Harris calling on him to push 
Dáithís Law through Westminster. 
 
Dáithís Law is happening and will be introduced on 1st June 2023 and that 
is down to the sheer persistence and determination of the Mac Gabhann 
family who never gave up. 
 
Dáithí is a hero and both he and has family should be commended for their 
campaigning and with that in mind, we call on Belfast City Council to grant 
Dáithí the freedom of the city and we ask that this process is expedited 
due to the introduction of Dáithís Law on the 1st June. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
 

Special Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday, 2nd May, 2023 

 
 

 
 

A1050 
 
 

This law will undoubtedly save lives and by granting Dáithí the freedom of 
the city, we will not only be giving Dáithí the due recognition he deserves 
but we will also help raise much needed awareness of this life saving 
legislation coming into effect.” 

 
 
 
 

Lord Mayor 
Chairperson 

 
 
 

Page 2



 

 
 

A1051 
 
 

Council 
 

MEETING OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 

Held in the Council Chamber, City Hall and remotely, via Microsoft Teams, 
on Tuesday, 2nd May, 2023 at 6.00 p.m., pursuant to notice. 

 
 
 Members present:   The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor (Councillor Black) 
  (Chairperson); 
  The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor M. Kelly); 
  The High Sheriff (Councillor Kyle); 

Aldermen Copeland, Dorrian, Haire, Sandford and Rodgers;  
and Councillors Beattie, Bradley, Bunting, Canavan, 
Carson, Matt Collins, Michael Collins , de Faoite, 
M. Donnelly, R. M. Donnelly, Doran, Douglas, Duffy, Flynn, 
Garrett, Gormley, Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, 
Hussey, T. Kelly, Long, Lyons, Magee, , Maskey, McAteer, 
McCabe, McCann, McCullough, McCusker, McDonough-
Brown, McKeown, McLaughlin, McMullan, Murphy, Murray, 
Newton, O’Hara, Smyth, Spratt, Thompson, Walsh and 
Whyte. 

 
 

Summons 
 
 The Chief Executive submitted the summons convening the meeting. 
 

Apologies 
 
 Apologies for inability to attend were reported for Alderman McCoubrey and 
Councillors Bower, Cobain, Ferguson, Hutchinson, Maghie, Nelson and Verner.  
 

Declarations of Interest 
 
 The Lord Mayor declared an interest in relation to the item “Community Support 
Programme” within the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee minutes, in that she 
worked for an organisation which had applied for funding.  
 
 Alderman Copeland declared an interest in relation to the items “Community 
Support Programme” and “Summer Community Diversionary Festivals Programme” 
within the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee minutes, in that her daughter 
worked for the Greater Village Regeneration Trust.  
 
 Alderman Haire declared an interest in relation to the item “Request for the use of 
Barnett Demesne and the Cenotaph” within the Strategic Policy and Resources 
Committee minutes, in that he was a trustee of the County Grand Orange Lodge, Belfast.  
 
 Councillor Beattie declared an interest in relation to the item “Community Support 
Programme” within the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee minutes, in that he 
was employed by an organisation which had applied for funding. 
 

Page 3



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday 2nd May, 2023 

 
 

 
 

A1052 
 
 

 Councillor Bunting declared an interest in relation to the item “Community Support 
Programme” and “Summer Community Diversionary Festivals Programme” within the 
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee minutes, in that she was a member of a group 
which had applied for funding.  
 
 Councillor Canavan declared an interest in relation to the item “Social 
Supermarket Funding – Update” within the People and Communities Committee minutes, 
in that she was a Board Member of an organisation which had applied for funding. 
 
 Councillor Gormley declared an interest in relation to the items “Community 
Support Programme” and “Summer Community Diversionary Festivals Programme” 
within the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee minutes, in that he was a board 
member of LORAG which had applied for funding.  
 
 Councillor Groogan declared an interest in relation to the items “Community 
Support Programme” and “Micro and Medium Grants 2023/24” within the Strategic Policy 
and Resources Committee minutes, in that she was employed by an organisation which 
had applied for funding.  
 
 Councillor McCabe declared an interest in relation to the items “Community 
Support Programme”, “Micro and Medium Grants 2023/24” and “Summer Community 
Diversionary Festivals Programme” within the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 
minutes, in that she worked for an organisation which had applied for funding.  
 
 Councillor Murray declared an interest in relation to the item “Micro and Medium 
Grants 2023/24” within the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee minutes, in that he 
was employed by an organisation which had applied for funding. 
 
 As none of the above items became the subject of debate, no Member left the 
meeting.  
 

Minutes of the Council 
 

Moved by the Lord Mayor 
Seconded by Councillor Beattie 
 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the monthly meeting 
of the Council of 3rd April be taken as read and signed as correct. 

 
Official Announcements 

 
Condolences 
 
 The Lord Mayor, along with a number of Members, offered their condolences to 
Councillor Kyle on the recent loss of his brother.  
 
 Councillor Bunting offered her condolences to Councillor Verner on the recent 
passing of her brother and to former Councillor Lee Reynolds, on the death of his father.  
  

Page 4



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday 2nd May, 2023 

 
 

 
 

A1053 
 
 

 
Congratulations 
 
 The Lord Mayor congratulated Alderman Haire on his recent wedding.  
 
Well Wishes 
 
 Several Members sent best wishes to those Members who were not standing in 
the upcoming election and thanked them for their hard work over the previous four years.  
 

Minutes of Strategic Policy and Resources Committee 
 
 Moved by Councillor McDonough-Brown, 
 Seconded by Councillor Heading,  
 

 That the minutes of the proceedings of the Strategic Policy and 
Resources Committee of 21st April, omitting matters in respect of which 
the Council has delegated its powers to the Committee, be approved and 
adopted. 
 

Amendment 
 
Moved by Councillor McLoughlin,  
Seconded by Councillor Beattie, and 
 
  Resolved – “That the Council agrees not to progress with the Single 
Tender Action for the acquisition of a unique giant bubble art installation 
by Atelier Sisu.” 
 
Adoption of Minutes 
 
 Subject to the foregoing amendment, the minutes of the proceedings 
of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee of 21st April were 
thereupon approved and adopted. 
 

Minutes of People and Communities Committee 
 

 Moved by Councillor Bunting, 
 Seconded by Councillor Garrett,  
 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the People and 
Communities Committee of 4th April be approved and adopted. 
 

  

Page 5



 
 

Meeting of Council, 
Tuesday 2nd May, 2023 

 
 

 
 

A1054 
 
 

 
Minutes of City Growth and Regeneration Committee 

 
 Moved by Councillor Spratt,  
 Seconded by Councillor Duffy, and 
 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the City Growth and 
Regeneration Committee of 5th April be approved and adopted, subject to 
the omission of the minute under the heading Committee Plan 2023-24 
and End of Year Report 2002-23, which was taken back to the Committee 
for further consideration. 
 

Minutes of Licensing Committee 
 

 Moved by Councillor Matt Collins, 
 Seconded by Councillor Smyth, and 
 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the Licensing 
Committee of 12th April, omitting matters in respect of which the Council 
has delegated its powers to the Committee, be approved and adopted. 
 

Minutes of Planning Committee 
 

 Moved by Councillor Whyte,  
 Seconded by Councillor Groogan, and 
 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the Planning 
Committee of 18th and 20th April, omitting matters in respect of which the 
Council has delegated its powers to the Committee, be approved and 
adopted. 
 

Minutes of Climate and City Resilience Committee  
 

 Moved by Councillor Walsh,  
 Seconded by Councillor McLoughlin, and 
 
 Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the Climate and City 
Resilience Committee of 6th April be approved and adopted. 

 
 
 
 

Lord Mayor 
Chairperson 

Page 6



S T A T U T O R Y  R U L E S  O F  N O R T H E R N  I R E L A N D  

2015 No. 125 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

The Local Government (Transitional, Incidental, Consequential 

and Supplemental Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 

2015 

Made - - - - 5th March 2015 

Coming into operation - 9th March 2015 

The Department of the Environment makes the following Regulations, in exercise of the powers 

conferred by section 124 of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014(a). 

Citation, commencement and interpretation 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Local Government (Transitional, Incidental, 

Consequential and Supplemental Provisions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015, and shall come 

into operation on 9th March 2015. 

(2) In these Regulations— 

“1972 Act” means the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 1972; 

“2014 Act” means the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014; 

“district” means a local government district established in pursuance of section 1 of the Local 

Government (Boundaries) Act (Northern Ireland) 2008(b); 

“new council” means a district council constituted under section 1 of the Local Government 

Act (Northern Ireland) 1972 as amended by section 3(1) of the Local Government 

(Boundaries) Act (Northern Ireland) 2008; 

“local government legislation” means— 

(a) the 1972 Act; 

(b) the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) (Northern Ireland) Order 2002(c); 

(c) Part 2 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005(d); 

(d) Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act (Northern 

Ireland) 2010(e); 

(e) the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011(f); 

(f) the 2014 Act; and 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2014 c. 8 (N.I.). 
(b) 2008 c. 7 (N.I.). 
(c) S.I. 2002/3149. 
(d) S.I. 2005/1968. 
(e) 2010 c. 7 (N.I.) as amended by 2011 c. 10 (N.I.). 
(f) 2011 c. 10 (N.I.). 

Page 7

Agenda Item 10



 2 

(g) any regulations or orders made under any of the immediately preceding statutory 

provisions. 

“operative date” is 1st October 2016; 

“casual vacancy” has the meaning given by section 11 of the Electoral Law Act (Northern 

Ireland) 1962(a). 

Boroughs 

2. Where, before the operative date, a new council is granted a charter designating its district a 

borough under section 2 of the 1972 Act and the whole or major part of any other borough has 

existed in the district before that date, the roll of honorary freemen of that other borough shall 

become and form part of the roll of honorary freemen of the borough designated by the charter. 

Charters 

3.—(1) On the operative date the charter of the corporation of every borough in existence before 

1st April 2015, other than a county borough, the borough of Lisburn or a borough to which 

paragraph (3)(c) applies, shall be annulled. 

(2) The new council for a district which includes the whole or the major part of a borough other 

than a county borough or the borough of Lisburn may, before the operative date, resolve that the 

charter of the corporation of the borough shall have effect in relation to the district; and, if the 

borough bears a name other than the name of the district, the resolution shall provide for the name 

of the corporation of the borough to be changed to correspond to the name of the district. 

(3) After 31st March 2015 the charter of— 

(a) the corporation of each county borough; 

(b) the corporation of the borough of Lisburn; and 

(c) a borough in respect of the charter of which a resolution has been passed under paragraph 

(2); 

shall, subject to these Regulations, have effect in relation to the district which includes the whole 

or major part of the borough as existing immediately before that date. 

(4) In the case of the charter of the borough of Lisburn, after 31st March 2015, the name of the 

corporation of the borough shall be the name of the district. 

(5) The corporation established or regulated by a charter to which paragraph (3) applies shall 

continue to bear the name it bore immediately before the operative date or, where a resolution 

passed under this paragraph provides for a change of its name, shall on and after that date bear the 

name specified in the resolution. 

(6) The chairman of the council mentioned in paragraph (5), and the councillors of that council 

who are designated as aldermen in accordance with the charter, shall be respectively the mayor 

(or, as the case may be, the lord mayor) and the aldermen of the borough to which the charter 

relates. 

(7) Where a freemen’s roll is in existence immediately prior to the operative date in a county 

borough or other borough to which these Regulations apply, that freemen’s roll shall, on the 

operative date, become and form part of the roll of honorary freemen of the borough designated by 

a charter to which paragraph (3) applies. 

(8) Without prejudice to any provision of the charter for the conferment of the freedom of the 

borough, the local electors of a district in relation to which a charter to which paragraph (3) 

applies shall, for the purposes of the charter, be the burgesses (or, as the case may be, the citizens) 

of the borough. 

(9) When a new council passes a resolution under subsection (2) it shall publish notice of the 

resolution in the Belfast Gazette. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1962 c. 14. 

Page 8



 3 

Designation of aldermen 

4.—(1) Notwithstanding any provision in a charter or statutory provision which (immediately 

prior to the operative date) provides for the designation of aldermen, where, in accordance with its 

charter, a council designates aldermen, it shall designate aldermen on or after that date in 

accordance with the following paragraphs of this regulation. 

(2) In this regulation— 

(a) the word “quota” means the number of all voting papers divided by a number exceeding 

by one the number of aldermen to be elected with the addition of one to the result 

obtained from such division; 

(b) the words “surplus votes” shall mean the number of votes by which the total number of 

votes cast for any candidate at any stage of counting exceeds the quota; and 

(c) “special resolution” has the meaning given by section 148 of the 1972 Act. 

(3) Aldermen shall be designated in accordance with the following rules— 

(a) the number of aldermen shall be such number as the council may determine but shall not 

exceed one quarter of the whole number of the councillors; 

(b) if the number of councillors nominated as a candidate for the position of alderman does 

not exceed the number determined by the council in accordance with subparagraph (a) 

and the council so agrees, those nominated councillors may be deemed to be elected to 

the position of alderman; 

(c) if subparagraph (b) does not apply, an alderman shall be elected by the council from 

among the councillors; 

(d) except in the case of an election of an alderman to fill a casual vacancy, the ordinary 

election of aldermen shall be held in every fourth year, being an election year; 

(e) subject to sub-paragraphs (r) and (s), the ordinary election of aldermen shall be held at the 

annual meeting of the council; 

(f) every councillor of the council shall be entitled to vote at the election of an alderman, 

including in the case of an election to fill a casual vacancy, a councillor who is an 

alderman; 

(g) a councillor shall be a candidate for election as an alderman if– 

(i) he is nominated as a candidate by one other councillor as proposer and another as 

seconder; and 

(ii) he assents to the nomination. 

Any nomination may be made, and any assent may be given, either in the course of the 

meeting or by a document signed by the councillor or councillors in question and 

delivered to the clerk of the council before the beginning of the meeting; 

(h) a councillor entitled to vote at a contested election of an alderman shall do so by signing 

and delivering at the meeting to the clerk of the council a voting paper containing in order 

of preference the full names of the candidate or candidates for whom he votes; 

(i) the clerk of the council shall, as soon as all the voting papers have been delivered to him, 

proceed to ascertain the result of the voting and shall state the number of votes given to 

each candidate at each stage of the counting of votes; 

(j) where at any stage of the council of votes the votes recorded for any candidate are equal 

to or greater than the quota, that candidate shall be deemed to be elected; 

(k) at each stage of the counting of votes the transfer of the surplus votes cast for any 

candidate shall be effected by the transfer of such surplus votes in proportion to the 

number of the next available preference votes expressed for other candidates in the voting 

papers of a successful candidate. If at any stage of the counting of votes two or more 

candidates have surplus votes, the largest surplus shall be transferred first; 

Page 9



 4 

(l) if the quota is not achieved after the transfer of all surpluses (if any), the candidate or 

candidates with the highest number of votes shall be elected to fill the remaining 

vacancies; 

(m) in the case of an equality of votes for any candidates, the person presiding at the meeting 

may give a casting vote, whether or not he voted in the first instance, or if the person 

presiding declines to give a casting vote the matter shall be decided by lot; 

(n) in the case of a contested election the person presiding at the meeting shall declare to be 

elected as many candidates as there are vacancies to be filled, and in cases where fewer 

nominations are received than there are vacancies shall declare to be elected all the 

candidates nominated; 

(o) the minutes of proceedings of the meeting, in addition to recording the names of the 

councillors becoming aldermen, shall in the case of a contested election include the full 

names of the candidates to whom votes were given and a complete record of the number 

of votes recorded for each; 

(p) an alderman may resign his office of alderman without ceasing to be a councillor; 

(q) where a councillor, who has been elected an alderman (including a councillor elected an 

alderman to fill a casual vacancy), ceases for any reason to be a councillor, then that 

person shall also cease to be an alderman; 

(r) on a casual vacancy occurring in the office of alderman, that vacancy shall be filled by an 

election at the next annual meeting of the council; 

(s) the first ordinary election of aldermen shall be held at the annual meeting of the council 

held in accordance with regulation 6(5) of the Local Government (Transitional, 

Supplementary, Incidental Provisions and Modifications) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 

2014(a) or, before 1 October 2016, at the first meeting of the council after it receives a 

borough charter (whether under the provisions of these Regulations or the grant of a new 

charter under section 2 of the 1972 Act); 

(t) any questions or matters arising concerning the counting of votes shall be determined by 

the clerk of the council. 

Freedom of the borough 

5. Persons shall be admitted to the freedom of the borough in accordance with the following 

rules— 

(a) no person shall be admitted a freeman of the borough by gift or purchase; 

(b) the council of the borough may, in pursuance of a special resolution of the council, admit 

any person to be an honorary freeman of the borough; 

(c) the admission of a person to be an honorary freeman of the borough shall not confer the 

right of sharing in the benefit of any assets of the council, or of any assets held in whole 

or in part for any charitable use or trust; 

(d) the clerk of the council shall keep a list, called the freemen’s roll, of all persons upon 

whom the freedom of the borough has been conferred. 

Revocation 

6. The Local Government (Modification of Borough Charters) Order (Northern Ireland) 1973(b) 

is revoked. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) S.R. 2014 No. 148. 
(b) S.R.&O. (N.I.) 1973 No. 207. 

Page 10



 5 

Sealed with the Official Seal of the Department of the Environment on 5th March 2015. 

 

 
 

 Linda MacHugh 

 A senior officer of the Department of the Environment 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations make certain provisions in relation to borough charters of existing councils and 

their continuation in relation to a new council. 

The Regulations also specify how a borough council may designate aldermen and admit persons to 

the freedom of the borough. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Council Meetings
	cu020523

	10 Appointment of Aldermen

